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Temple Druid

SN096272           OS  25” first edition  XVIII.9          Maenclochog

Cadw listing 1971  Grade II

Cadw considered including this site in the register but rejected it.

Early 19C attributed to John Nash. Cement rendered. Hipped slate roof, bracketed eaves band. 2 story. 3 windows, sashes with glazing bars, triple light to ground floor right hand. Central round headed door opening, square head door with two round headed panels, arched fanlight. Door case with flat entableture, moulded cornice on two engaged Roman Doric columns. Centre portion with window and door breaks forward slightly. Interior may be of interest.  
1790s  built for Henry Bulkeley to a Nash design.  Called Bwlch y Clawdd.

1821  on death of above put up for sale. The sale particulars (see FJ) make it seem very grand.

1867  Sale of freehold estates (1,000 acres plus) of Sychpant and Ravelfach (Fishguard) for un-named client by Driver and Co of London.

“valuable veins of grey slate underlie a potion.....that under Temple Druid being of a fine quality and obtained at small cost.”

A portion of 9 acres of land at Temple Druid

Farmland of 128 acres.

House, garden and paddock to 7 acres.

All purchased by Vaughan of The West.

1871 (PRO  D/EE/20/34)  John Vaughan, The West, Walton obtains mortgage.

1898   (PRO D/EE/V/1/1)  Conditions of Sale of Residence etc called Temple Druid. It is not always clear whether the name refers to the farm or to the mansion; this seems to be the mansion, the earlier mortgages etc referring to the farm only.

“ the delightfully situated residence of Temple Druid with its woods and ornamental grounds, farmhouse and 54 acres of capital land and three cottages and gardens.....is let to good tenants at £74 pa.”

It was purchased by Margaret Edwards Liddell of Cardiff at £1,460 for Mary Anne Bateman,wife of Evan Bateman of Scollock and Lizzie Davies, wife of James Davies of The West, Walton.

1900   John Vaughan now deceased (reason for the above sale?). Valuations and sales of various properties including part of Wallis, a Moravian Chapel in H’west

1901 (Kellys)   Madam Edwards.  Lord of the Manor Sir Charles E Gregg Philipps, Picton.

1914     “          Motague L Featham.        “

1920     “          Edward Powell Mathias.   “

1923     “          no resident named

1926     “                     “ 

Became a hunting lodge and much altered. Name changed to Temple Druid - the name of the megalith on the site - now disappeared. It was part of the Trecwn estate between 1819 and 1839.

Several owners and tenants over the years included a Pryce who had made a fortune in India, Leo Walmsley the writer during World War II and a Mrs Harry Firmstone who lived here for over 20 years.

1950/51  Disputes between building contractor from Llechryd and the owners, Mr and Mrs Sweet Escott, re alleged faulty workmanship.  The lid of a ram house is mentioned. Some of the work involved the water supply to the house. 

1989  Sale with 88 acres of woodland, pasture, a lake and a trout stream.

Visit 18.10.99 with Dr Stephen Briggs.

There is a blocked up gateway to the SE near the stream with one single stone pier visible with some iron fittings. Said to have been the exit of a slate quarry (1).

There is a large stone in the field opposite the gateeway (3) and another to the left (W) of the carriage drive.

Formal gate piers taller than those in FJ’s illustration but with no ornimentation on top. They appear to be modern block structures, the outlines showing through a thin cement layer. There was, or there was intended to be, an electric lighting system (2)

East of the gateway, just within the field, are two mature beech and a horse chestnut. Further over, to the east of the house, are two large beech beyond which is much recent planting.The coach-house complex can be seen to the left of the house.(4a and b)

The drive curves slightly to the left and goes over a slight rise so that, from the entrance, one can see only the upper (first) floor of the house (5). Shrubs have been planted at some time on each side of the drive but the area seems neglected. 

In the turning circle there is a raised pond perhaps 6/7 metres in diameter made of stone and brick to look like stone. The present occupants have constructed a central fountain which functions and is quite impressive!  At the top is a (Victorian?) cast iron urn standing in a (cast?) iron bowl of perhaps 1.3 m diameter, the outside of which appears to have been white enamelled; the algae and flaking of the enamel give an antique effect. The whole stans upon a cylindrical base of some sort of  wide diameter drainage piping.(6,7 and 8).

One can pass to the left of the house between it and the coach-house which is set into a cliff face (9). The area behind is grassed with a large pile of rocks and soil in the corner opposite the passage; this was probably the bulldozed remains of the back of the house following the fire which destroyed this half about 100 years ago. A concrete block wall and simple windows have been erected - very tatty and ugly. A more modern kitchen wing has been built out backwards at the west side. So the house is now very narrow front to back - only one room deep.

The occupier, a Mr. Bently who greeted us, spoke of his colleagues who plan to restore the house but work appears to be “on stop” due, one imagines, to a shortage of cash.

The coach-house complex is a most extra-ordinary building on three levels which defies our imagination.

It appears as a blank stone wall perhaps 3/4m high with a path along the top about 1.5m wide (10). This is reached by a double flight of stone steps from the passageway. At each end is a very high tower in the base of which is a high arch into a barrel-vaulted cart-house (11). There is no opening above these arches.

At the back of the raised pathway are five stone arches. The left side is tall and narrow. The three central ones are lower and wider. All access small-stone barrel-vaulted  chambers about 3m deep. Their function is not known. The right hand arch is taller; a flight of steps goes straight up to the second level. 

We are now on a grassy square. To each side is a single story building extending back over the coach sheds. The one to the right (N) has a pedestrian door and opposite, in the NW corner, a cart width entrance with timber beam lintel. There is a partial division beyond which is a much larger rectangular space extending over the cart shed. There are windows in the north and south sides only. The one to the left covers the same area but is a little higher. It has a timber-lintelled cart entrance at the west end on north and south walls and a window to the left (E) of these. It also has a N/S partition with a doorway near each end.

What were the vaulted chambers and these top buildings used for? The top buildings could have been of farm and/or service use but it hardly seems coceivable that they were to house coach horses as it would be so far to bring them.
Western Telegraph  4th October 2006   Breath of fresh air for youngsters


Temple Druid is now owned by the Dandelion Trust.  Steve and Samara Jarvis work for the trust which “helps people in traumatic situations, supports the arts and preserves green spaces and beautiful buildings”.

They are currently hosting a group of children from the Chernobyl area of Belarus.
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